
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Wheelwright Room 

of the Town Office Building, Exeter on Tuesday, November 18th, 2014 at 7:00 P.M.   
 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 

 
Action Items 

1. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Permit for the construction of an artificial turf field in the location of 
the existing athletic fields for Phillips Exeter Academy at Gilman Lane, Exeter (Tax Map 71, Lot 119). 
(Anthony P. Panciocco) 

2. Town of Exeter Linden and Court Street Culvert Replacement (Britt Audette, CMA Engineers). 
3. Exeter Snowhounds Request for Annual Use of Snowmobile Trail.  Secondary request for new trail re-

route to avoid sharp turn back onto the powerline within the Forest Ridge Conservation Area (See Memo). 
 

Regular Business: 
 

1. Elliott Clean-up 
2. Committee Reports  

a. Boundary Monitoring 
b. Trails 
c. Outreach 

3. Approval of Minutes: October 14th, 2014 
4. Treasurers Report 
5. Other Business 
6. Next Meeting: Date and Agenda Items  

 
Work Session 

7. Raynes Management Plan Update (Don Briselden) 
8. Forest Management Plan (Don Briselden)  
9. Trail/Bridges Specs (Pete Richardson) 

 
 

Jay Gregoire, Chair  
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted November 14th, 2014:  Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments. 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.exeternh.gov/


 

 

144 Fore Street    I    P.O. Box 618    I    Portland, Maine   04104    I    p 207.772.3846    f 207.772.1070    I    www.smrtinc.com 

 

ARCHITECTURE       ENGINEERING       PLANNING      INTERIORS       ENERGY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 
 

 
Table of Contents (TOC) 

 
 

 

Attachment 1 - Wetland Permit Application 

Attachment 2 – Need and Minimization & Avoidance 

Attachment 3 – NHB Review 

Attachment 4 – NH PGP Requirements 

Attachment 5 – Designated River Check 

Attachment 6 – USGS Map 

Attachment 7 – Photographs 

Attachment 8 – Plans 

Attachment 9 – Tax Map 

Attachment 10 – Abutter Notification 

Attachment 11 – Wetland Delineation Report 

Attachment 12 – U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service IPAC Review 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #1 

 
 

Wetland Permit Application 

 



Permit Application - Valid until 01/2015 – Revised 7/1/14                            Page 1 of 4 

 THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

LAND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 
WETLANDS BUREAU 

29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 
Phone: (603) 271-2147    Fax: (603) 271-6588     

http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands  

PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

1.  REVIEW TIME:  

Indicate your Review Time below. Refer to Guidance Document A for instructions. 

 Standard Review (Minimum, Minor or Major Impact)  Expedited Review (Minimum Impact) 

2.  PROJECT LOCATION:  

Separate applications must be filed with each municipality that jurisdictional impacts will occur in. 

ADDRESS:  Gilman Lane                                              TOWN/CITY:  Exeter 

TAX MAP:  71 BLOCK:    LOT:  119 UNIT:    

USGS TOPO MAP WATERBODY NAME:         NA STREAM WATERSHED SIZE:                        NA 

LOCATION COORDINATES (If known):  42°58’34.84”N, 70°56’22.35”W                                            Latitude/Longitude     UTM    State 

Plane 

3.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  

Provide a brief description of the project outlining the scope of work.  Attach additional sheets as needed to provide a detailed explanation 
of your project.  DO NOT reply “See Attached" in the space provided below. 

The proposed project is the construction of an artificial turf field located over an existing grass field.  Wetland impacts 
associated with this project are a result of the grading for a wet pond and its outlet. 

4.  RELATED PERMITS, ENFORCEMENT, EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATION, SHORELAND, ALTERATION OF TERRAIN, ETC… 

Alteration of Terrain 

5.  NATURAL HERITAGE BUREAU & DESIGNATED RIVERS: 

See the Instructions & Required Attachments document for instructions to complete a & b below. 

a.   Natural Heritage Bureau File ID:     NHB 14   -  2846    .   

b.     Designated River the project is in ¼ miles of: Exeter River                                            ; and  

date a copy of the application was sent to Local River Advisory Committee: Month:  11   Day:  20   Year:  2014    

  NA               

 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

File No.: 

Check No.: 

Amount: 

Initials: 

http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands




Permit Application - Valid until 01/2015 – Revised 7/1/14                            Page 3 of 4 

 
MUNICIPAL SIGNATURES 

 

10.  CONSERVATION COMMISSION SIGNATURE 

The signature below certifies that the municipal conservation commission has reviewed this application, and:   

1.  Waives its right to intervene per RSA 482-A:11;   
2.  Believes that the application and submitted plans accurately represent the proposed project; and  
3.  Has no objection to permitting the proposed work.                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

    Authorized Commission Signature 

 

Print name legibly  Date 

   

 DIRECTIONS  FOR CONSERVATION COMMISSION  

 

1.  Expedited review ONLY requires that the conservation commission’s signature is obtained in the space above.   

2.  The Conservation Commission signature should be obtained prior to the submittal of the original application and 

four copies to the town/city clerk for mailing to the DES.   

3.  The Conservation Commission may refuse to sign. If the Conservation Commission does not sign this statement 
for any reason, the application is not eligible for expedited review and the application will reviewed in the standard 
review time frame.  

   
 
 

11.  TOWN / CITY CLERK SIGNATURE 

As required by Chapter 482-A:3 (amended 2014), I hereby certify that the applicant has filed four application forms, four 
detailed plans, and four USGS location maps with the town/city indicated below.  

 

 

 

 Town/City Clerk Signature                               

 

Print name legibly                                             Town/City                                                              Date 

                                            

 
DIRECTIONS FOR TOWN/CITY CLERK: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Per RSA 482-A:3,I 
 

1. For applications where "Expedited Review" is checked on page 1, sign and accept the applications only if the 
Conservation Commission signature has been received; 

 

2. IMMEDIATELY sign the original application form and four copies in the signature space provided above;  
 

3. Return the signed original application form and attachments to the applicant so that the applicant may submit the 
application form and attachments to NHDES by mail or hand delivery. 

 

4. IMMEDIATELY distribute a copy of the application with one complete set of attachments to each of the following 
bodies:  the municipal Conservation Commission, the local governing body (Board of Selectmen or Town/City 
Council), and the Planning Board; and 

 

5. Retain one copy of the application form and one complete set of attachments and make them reasonably 
accessible for public review. 

DIRECTIONS FOR APPLICANT: 

1. Submit the original permit application form bearing the signature of the Town/ City Clerk, additional materials, 
and the application fee to NHDES by mail or hand delivery. 

     

 

 

    



Permit Application - Valid until 01/2015 – Revised 7/1/14                            Page 4 of 4 

12. IMPACT AREA: 

For each jurisdictional area that will be/has been impacted, provide square feet and, if applicable, linear feet of impact        

Permanent: impacts that will remain after the project is complete. 

Temporary:  impacts not intended to remain (and will be restored to pre-construction conditions) after the project is complete. 

After-the-fact (ATF): work completed prior to receipt of this application by DES. Check box to indicate ATF. 

JURISDICTIONAL AREA 
PERMANENT 

Sq. Ft. / Lin. Ft. 
TEMPORARY   

Sq. Ft. / Lin. Ft. 

Forested wetland        ATF        ATF 

Scrub-shrub wetland        ATF        ATF 

Emergent wetland 393 s.f  ATF        ATF 

Wet meadow        ATF        ATF 

Intermittent stream         ATF        ATF 

Perennial Stream / River       /        ATF       /        ATF 

Lake / Pond       /        ATF       /        ATF 

Bank - Intermittent stream       /        ATF       /        ATF 

Bank - Perennial stream / River        /        ATF       /        ATF 

Bank - Lake / Pond       /        ATF       /        ATF 

Tidal water       /        ATF       /        ATF 

Salt marsh        ATF        ATF 

Sand dune        ATF        ATF 

Prime wetland        ATF        ATF 

Prime wetland buffer        ATF        ATF 

Undeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone (TBZ)        ATF        ATF 

Previously-developed upland in TBZ         ATF        ATF 

Docking - Lake / Pond        ATF        ATF 

Docking - River        ATF        ATF 

Docking - Tidal Water        ATF        ATF 

TOTAL 393 /              /        

 

13.  APPLICATION FEE: See the Instructions & Required Attachments document for further instruction  

 Minimum Impact Fee: Flat fee of $ 200    

 Minor or Major Impact Fee: Calculate using the below table below 

Permanent and Temporary (non-docking)        sq. ft. X   $0.20 = $       
 

 

Temporary (seasonal) docking structure:        sq. ft. X    $1.00 = $       
 

Permanent docking structure:        sq. ft. X    $2.00 = $       
 

Projects proposing shoreline structures (including docks) add $200  = $       
 

Total = $       
 

The Application Fee is the above calculated Total or $200, whichever is greater = $  200.00 
 

   
 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 
 
 
 

Attachment #2 
 
 

Need and Minimization & Avoidance 



 

 

 

PORTLAND, ME      I      ALBANY, NY      I      ANDOVER, MA      I      KEENE, NH      I      ALEXANDRIA, VA      I      www.smrtinc.com 

 

ARCHITECTURE       ENGINEERING       PLANNING      INTERIORS       ENERGY 

Statement of Avoidance and Minimization 
 

 

Project Background 

 

The proposed project consists of the construction of a new artificial turf field at the location of an 

existing natural grass field on the Phillips Exeter Academy Campus in Exeter New Hampshire.  The 

project site is located on the east side of Gilman Lane, east of the existing Phelps Stadium and will abut 

the eastern side of the existing stadium grandstands.   

 

The proposed project will be located entirely within an existing grass field area.  The existing grass field 

area/ (proposed site) generally drains in a north/northwesterly and south/south westerly direction around 

the existing Phelps Stadium.  Wetland areas associated with drainage ways have been identified on the 

northern and southern sides of the existing grass field areas.  These drainage ways convey runoff 

westerly across the property to the Exeter River.  Approximately 393 square feet of wetland impacts are 

anticipated as a result of the construction of a pocket wet pond and the field associated outlet.     

 

Wetland delineation was performed for the project site by Gove Environmental Service, Inc.  A copy of 

the Wetland Delineation Report is attached with this submission.   

 

The proposed project will be reviewed by NHDES under an Alteration of Terrain Permit application for 

land disturbance in excess of 100,000 square feet.  As part of the requirements of the permit application 

a pocket wet pond will be constructed to provide water quality and quantity control for new turf field.  

The existing flat terrain of the project site dictates that a wet pond with a shallow outlet be constructed.  

The wet pond has been designed with a concrete weir panel and rip rap outlet which will discharge to 

the existing drainage way located to the north of the proposed field.  This drainage way has been 

identified as a wetland in the Gove Environmental Services Wetland Delineation Report.   

 

 

Avoidance and Minimization 

 

The two areas of impact associated with the project are related to the pond’s rip rap outlet and the slope 

grading associated with the pond’s berm construction.  In order to outlet the proposed pond, the lowest 

elevation point in the vicinity must be utilized.  The proposed pond outlet is a concrete weir panel with a 

protected riprap outlet.  We have identified a location within the drainage way/wetland to the north 

where the grade change provides sufficient positive drainage from the pond’s outlet.  The wetland 

impact associated with the new outlet equals approximately 50 square feet and is identified as wetland 

impact area #1.  The impact is a result of the riprap protection from the outlet, which is required to 

protect the wetland resource from erosive outflow velocities. 

 

The proposed pond has been graded to avoid the wetland limits to a greatest extent practical.  A small 

wetland finger (which is currently mowed lawn) extends approximately 50 feet southerly from the 

drainage way.  This wetland area is currently lawn and approximately 343 square feet of impacts are 

associated with the grading and construction of the pond’s berm. This area has been identified as 

wetland impact area #2.  The pond berm has been designed and graded to meet the 3:1 slope 

requirements as defined in the New Hampshire Stormwater Manual. 

 



 

 

 

PORTLAND, ME      I      ALBANY, NY      I      ANDOVER, MA      I      KEENE, NH      I      ALEXANDRIA, VA      I      www.smrtinc.com 

 

ARCHITECTURE       ENGINEERING       PLANNING      INTERIORS       ENERGY 

The pond has been sited to allow for positive drainage to the outlet as well as minimizing wetland 

impacts and preserving as much of the existing grass playing fields as possible. 

 

As part of the project development, an option of placing a pond on the southern side of the proposed 

field area was evaluated.  In this area, there is approximately 300’ of existing grass field that would 

require crossing, prior to reaching an outlet in the southern wetland/drainage way.  Based on the 

relatively flat nature of the existing topography it was not possible to provide a positive outlet from a 

pond to the drainage way. 

 

As indicated by the existing site topography the grade climbs to the east of the proposed field area.  As 

such, placement of the pond in this area is not feasible due to the inability to provide a positive outlet.  

 

The proposed pond has been designed to meet the requirements of the New Hampshire Stormwater 

Manual, Volume 2 Post-Construction Best Management Practices, December 2008. 

Additionally, the pond has been situated to allow for positive drainage into and out of the pond while at 

the same time minimizing the impacts to the wetland resource.  

 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 
 
 
 

Attachment #3 
 
 

NHB Review  



  
  New Hampshire Natural Heritage Bureau 

NHB DataCheck Results Letter 

Department of Resources and Economic Development DRED/NHB 
Division of Forests and Lands  PO Box 1856 
(603) 271-2214     fax:  271-6488  Concord  NH   03302-1856 

 To: KENNETH COSTELLO, SMRT INC 
1 DUNDEE PARK 
SUITE 4 
ANDOVER, MA  01810 
 

 From: NH Natural Heritage Bureau 

 Date: 8/7/2014 (valid for one year from this date) 

 Re: Review by NH Natural Heritage Bureau of request submitted 7/31/2014 

   

NHB File ID: NHB14-2846 Applicant: Ron Johnson 
    

Location: Exeter 
Tax Maps: Map 71, Lot 119 

Project 
Description:

  
Convert existing natural grass athletic field to synthetic athletic field. 

 
The NH Natural Heritage database has been checked by staff of the NH Natural Heritage Bureau 
and/or the NH Nongame and Endangered Species Program for records of rare species and 
exemplary natural communities near the area mapped below. The species considered include 
those listed as Threatened or Endangered by either the state of New Hampshire or the federal 
government. 
 
It was determined that, although there was a NHB record (e.g., rare wildlife, plant, and/or natural 
community) present in the vicinity, we do not expect that it will be impacted by the proposed 
project. This determination was made based on the project information submitted via the NHB 
Datacheck Tool on 7/31/2014, and cannot be used for any other project. 



  
  New Hampshire Natural Heritage Bureau 

NHB DataCheck Results Letter 

Department of Resources and Economic Development DRED/NHB 
Division of Forests and Lands  PO Box 1856 
(603) 271-2214     fax:  271-6488  Concord  NH   03302-1856 

MAP OF PROJECT BOUNDARIES FOR: NHB14-2846 

 

 

 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #4 

 
 

NH PGP Requirements



NH PGP – Appendix B  August 2012 2 

 

 
New Hampshire Programmatic General Permit (PGP) 

Appendix B - Corps Secondary Impacts Checklist 
(for inland wetland/waterway fill projects in New Hampshire) 

 
1. Attach any explanations to this checklist.  Lack of information could delay a Corps permit determination. 
2. All references to “work” include all work associated with the project construction and operation.  Work 
includes filling, clearing, flooding, draining, excavation, dozing, stumping, etc. 
3. See PGP, GC 5, regarding single and complete projects.  
4. Contact the Corps at (978) 318-8832 with any questions. 
1. Impaired Waters Yes No 
1.1 Will any work occur within 1 mile upstream in the watershed of an impaired water?  See 
http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wmb/section401/impaired_waters.htm 
to determine if there is an impaired water in the vicinity of your work area.*   

  

2. Wetlands Yes No 
2.1 Are there are streams, brooks, rivers, ponds, or lakes within 200 feet of any proposed work?   
2.2 Are there proposed impacts to SAS, shellfish beds, special wetlands and vernal pools (see 
PGP, GC 26 and Appendix A)?  Applicants may obtain information from the NH Department of 
Resources and Economic Development Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) website, 
www.nhnaturalheritage.org, specifically the book Natural Community Systems of New 
Hampshire. 

  

2.3 If wetland crossings are proposed, are they adequately designed to maintain hydrology, 
sediment transport & wildlife passage? 

  

2.4 Would the project remove part or all of a riparian buffer?  (Riparian buffers are lands adjacent 
to streams where vegetation is strongly influenced by the presence of water. They are often thin 
lines of vegetation containing native grasses, flowers, shrubs and/or trees that line the stream 
banks.  They are also called vegetated buffer zones.) 

  

2.5 The overall project site is more than 40 acres.   
2.6 What is the size of the existing impervious surface area?  
2.7 What is the size of the proposed impervious surface area?  

2.8 What is the % of the impervious area (new and existing) to the overall project site?  

3.  Wildlife Yes No 
3.1  Has the NHB determined that there are known occurrences of rare species, exemplary natural 
communities, Federal and State threatened and endangered species and habitat, in the vicinity of 
the proposed project?  (All projects require a NHB determination.) 

  

3.2 Would work occur in any area identified as either “Highest Ranked Habitat in N.H.” or 
“Highest Ranked Habitat in Ecological Region”? (These areas are colored magenta and green, 
respectively, on NH Fish and Game’s map, “2010 Highest Ranked Wildlife Habitat by Ecological 
Condition.”)  Map information can be found at:  
• PDF:  www.wildlife.state.nh.us/Wildlife/Wildlife_Plan/highest_ranking_habitat.htm.  
• Data Mapper:  www.granit.unh.edu. 
• GIS:  www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html. 

 

  

http://www.dred.state.nh.us/divisions/forestandlands/bureaus/naturalheritage�
http://www.nhdfl.org/library/pdf/Finalsystemsreport.pdf�
http://www.nhdfl.org/library/pdf/Finalsystemsreport.pdf�
http://www.granit.unh.edu/�
http://www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html�
TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
n/a

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
6.12 ac

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
(428 ac. parcel, 4.82 ac. of project disturbance)

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
0.523 ac

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
1.5 %

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
(428 ac.)

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text



NH PGP – Appendix B  August 2012 3 

3.3 Would the project impact more than 20 acres of an undeveloped land block (upland, 
wetland/waterway) on the entire project site and/or on an adjoining property(s)? 

  

3.4 Does the project propose more than a 10-lot residential subdivision, or a commercial or 
industrial development? 

  

3.5 Are stream crossings designed in accordance with the PGP, GC 21?   
4.  Flooding/Floodplain Values Yes No 
4.1 Is the proposed project within the 100-year floodplain of an adjacent river or stream?   
4.2 If 4.1 is yes, will compensatory flood storage be provided if the project results in a loss of 
flood storage? 

  

5.  Historic/Archaeological Resources   
For a minor or major impact project - a copy of the Request for Project Review (RPR) Form 
(www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review)  shall be sent to the NH Division of Historical Resources as required 
on Page 5 of the PGP** 

  

*Although this checklist utilizes state information, its submittal to the Corps is a Federal requirement. 
** If project is not within Federal jurisdiction, coordination with NH DHR is not required under Federal law.. 
` 

http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review�
TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
n/a

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
X

TPanciocco
Typewritten Text
n/a





 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #5 

 

 
Designated River Check 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 
Designated River Check 

 

The proposed project is within ¼ of the Exeter River; as such we have sent a copy of this application 

to the Exeter River Local Advisory Committee.  Attached is a certified mail receipt for the mailing 

to the Advisory Committee.   





 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #6 

 

 
USGS Map





 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #7 

 

 
Photographs 

 



 Wetlands Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 
 
 

 
 

1. Looking Easterly at Wetland Impact Area #1  
 

 
 

2.  Looking Westerly at Wetland Impact Area #1 
  

TPanciocco
Polygon

TPanciocco
Polygon



 Wetlands Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 
 

 
 

3.  Looking Northerly at Wetland Impact Area #2 
 

 
 

4. Looking North Easterly at Wetland Impact Area #2 
 

TPanciocco
Polygon

TPanciocco
Polygon



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #8 

 

 
Plans 

 









NORTH



NORTH



NORTH



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #9 

 
 

Tax Map 















 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #10 

 
 

Abutter Notifications 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ARCHITECTURE       ENGINEERING       PLANNING      INTERIORS       ENERGY 

PORTLAND, ME     I     ANDOVER, MA     I     ALBANY, NY     I     KEENE, NH     I    ALEXANDRIA, VA     I     www.smrtinc.com 

 
 
 
 
November 20, 2014 
 
 
Re: New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services 
Wetlands Permit Application 
Phillips Exeter Academy, Gilman Lane, Exeter NH 
Tax Map 71 / Lot No. 119 
 
Dear Abutter: 
 
Please take notice that Phillips Exeter Academy is intending on submitting a Wetlands Permit 
Application with the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) Wetland 
Bureau for a Wetlands Permit associated with the above referenced project.  The application is 
for work to develop an artificial turf field at the location of an existing grass field.  The proposed 
project is located off Gilman Lane, behind the existing Phelps Stadium, on the campus of Phillips 
Exeter Academy.   Under State law RSA 482-A: 3 I (d) (1), we are required to notify you about the 
application, which proposes work abutting your property.   

 
Once it is filed, the permit application, including plans that show the proposed project will be 
available for viewing at the City Clerk’s Office in the Town of Exeter.  A copy of the application 
may also be seen at the NHDES offices by scheduling a file review, (by calling (603) 271- 8876) or 
online at http://www4.egov.nh.gov/DES/FileReview/. 

 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kenneth Costello 
SMRT, Inc. 
1 Dundee Park, Suite 4 
Andover, MA 01810 
207-321-3986 
kcostello@smrtinc.com 
 
 

 
 

http://www4.egov.nh.gov/DES/FileReview/


 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #11 

 
 

Wetland Delineation Report 



GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 
 

8 Continental Dr Unit H, Exeter, NH 03833‐7507 

Ph (603) 778 0644 / Fax (603) 778 0654 

www.gesinc.biz 

info@gesinc.biz 

 
 
August 12, 2014 
 
Kenneth D. Costello RLA, LEED AP 
Senior Landscape Architect 
Licensed: MA, NH & RI 
SMRT  
One Dundee Park, Suite 4 
Andover, Massachusetts 01810 
 
Subject: Wetland Delineation Report 
 Phillips Exeter Academy Fields 
 
Dear Mr. Costello: 
 
Per your request, this letter is to verify that Gove Environmental Services, Inc., performed a site 
inspection to identify wetlands at the above-referenced property.  Wetlands were evaluated 
utilizing the following standards: 

1. US Army Corps of Engineers Interim Regional Supplement to the Corps of 
Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:  Northcentral and Northeast Region, 
Technical Report ERDC/EL TR-09-19 (Oct 2009). 

2. Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States, A Guide for Identifying and 
Delineating Hydric Soils, Version 7.0. 
United States Department of Agriculture (2010).  

3. North American Digital Flora:  National Wetland Plant List, Version 2.2.1 (2009). 
4. USFW Manual FWS/OBS–79/31 (1979). 

 
Here areas of wetlands were identified within the area designated for the scope of work.   
 
Wetland 1 is a predominantly emergent with a minor scrub-shrub component, dominated by 
sedges and rushes, as well as cinnamon and sensitive fern in the herbaceous layer with alder and 
dogwood in the shrub layer.  This wetland drains form the west to the east where it enters a 
culvert and drains to the river.  Delineation was marked as 1-45.  This wetland acts as a 
conveyance for water from the sheet flow off of the field as well as increased levels of water 
during the spring and fall. 
 
Wetland 2 is located to the back of the existing ball field and is flagged as 46-51 and is an 
emergent wetland system dominated by sedges and grasses.  Hydrology is primarily from surface 
flow and some ground water during high ground water levels in the spring and fall. 
 



 

Wetland 3 is located to the south of the ball field and is part of a larger system extending further 
south.  The wetland is combination of emergent/scrub-shrub/forested, with Ferns and sedges in 
the herbaceous layer, high bush blueberry and sweet pepper bush in the shrub layer and red 
maple, yellow birch and oaks in the tree layer.  The area closest to the open grass is fed by 
runoff, as the rest of the wetland area is predominantly seasonal ground water functions 
influenced. 
 
This concludes the wetland delineation report.  If I can be of further assistance, please feel free to 
contact me at (603) 778-0644. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Luke D. Hurley, CWS, SSA CESSWI 
Vice President 
Gove Environmental Services, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment #12 

 
 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service IPAC 
Review 

 

 



 Wetland Permit Application  
Phillips Exeter Synthetic Field 

 
 

 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service IPAC Review 

 

At the suggestion of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers we utilized the online IPAC review to check 

for endangered species with the vicinity of our project.  There are no listed endangered species, 

critical habitats, or National Wildlife Rufuges in the vicinity of our project. See attached Trust 

Resource printout.   

 



U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 1 of 6

Version 1.4

This resource list is to be used for planning purposes only — it is not an official species list. 

Endangered Species Act species list information for your project is available online and listed below for 
the following FWS Field Offices:

New England Ecological Services Field Office
70 COMMERCIAL STREET, SUITE 300
CONCORD, NH 3301
(603) 223-2541
http://www.fws.gov/newengland

Project Name:
PEA

http://www.fws.gov/newengland


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 2 of 6

Version 1.4

Project Location Map:

Project Counties:
Rockingham, NH

Geographic coordinates (Open Geospatial Consortium Well-Known Text, NAD83):
MULTIPOLYGON (((-70.942063 42.9772995, -70.93956 42.9771603, -70.9385022 42.9772878, 
-70.9378584 42.9752442, -70.9397675 42.974888, -70.9419148 42.974565, -70.9421308 42.9762252, 
-70.942063 42.9772995)))

Project Type:
Development



U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 3 of 6

Version 1.4

Endangered Species Act Species List (USFWS Endangered Species Program).
There are no listed species found within the vicinity of your project.

Critical habitats within your project area: 

There are no critical habitats within your project area.

FWS National Wildlife Refuges (USFWS National Wildlife Refuges Program).

There are no refuges found within the vicinity of your project.

FWS Migratory Birds (USFWS Migratory Bird Program).

The protection of birds is regulated by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) and the Bald and Golden Eagle 
Protection Act (BGEPA). Any activity, intentional or unintentional, resulting in take of migratory birds, 
including eagles, is prohibited unless otherwise permitted by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (50 C.F.R. Sec. 
10.12 and 16 U.S.C. Sec. 668(a)). The MBTA has no provision for allowing take of migratory birds that may be 
unintentionally killed or injured by otherwise lawful activities. For more information regarding these Acts see: 
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/RegulationsandPolicies.html.

All project proponents are responsible for complying with the appropriate regulations protecting  birds when 
planning and developing a project. To meet these conservation obligations,  proponents should identify potential 
or existing project-related impacts to migratory birds and  their habitat and develop and implement conservation 
measures that avoid, minimize, or  compensate for these impacts. The Service's Birds of Conservation Concern 
(2008) report  identifies species, subspecies, and populations of all migratory nongame birds that, without  
additional conservation actions, are likely to become listed under the Endangered Species Act as  amended (16 
U.S.C 1531 et seq.).

For information about Birds of Conservation Concern, go to:
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Management/BCC.html.

To search and view summaries of year-round bird occurrence data within your project area,  go to the Avian 
Knowledge Network Histogram Tool links in the Bird Conservation Tools section at:  http://www.fws.gov/
migratorybirds/CCMB2.htm.

For information about conservation measures that help avoid or minimize impacts to birds, please visit:
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CCMB2.htm.

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/
http://refuges.fws.gov
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/RegulationsandPolicies.html
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Management/BCC.html
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CCMB2.htm
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CCMB2.htm
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CCMB2.htm


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 4 of 6

Version 1.4

Migratory birds of concern that may be affected by your project:
There are 17 birds on your Migratory birds of concern list. The underlying data layers used to generate the 
migratory bird list of concern will continue to be updated regularly  as new and better information is obtained. 
User feedback is one method of identifying any needed improvements.  Therefore, users are encouraged to 
submit comments about any questions regarding species ranges  (e.g., a bird on the USFWS BCC list you know 
does not occur in the specified location appears on the list,  or a BCC species that you know does occur there is 
not appearing on the list).  Comments should be sent to the ECOS Help Desk.

Species Name Bird of Conservation 
Concern (BCC)

S p e c i e s  
Profile

Seasonal Occurrence in 
Project Area

American Oystercatcher   
(Haematopus palliatus) 

Yes species info Breeding

American bittern   (Botaurus 
lentiginosus) 

Yes species info Breeding

Bald eagle   (Haliaeetus 
leucocephalus) 

Yes species info Year-round

Black-billed Cuckoo   (Coccyzus 
erythropthalmus) 

Yes species info Breeding

Blue-winged Warbler   (Vermivora 
pinus) 

Yes species info Breeding

Canada Warbler   (Wilsonia 
canadensis) 

Yes species info Breeding

Hudsonian Godwit   (Limosa 
haemastica) 

Yes species info Migrating

Least Bittern   (Ixobrychus exilis) Yes species info Breeding

Olive-Sided flycatcher   (Contopus 
cooperi) 

Yes species info Breeding

Peregrine Falcon   (Falco peregrinus) Yes species info Breeding

Pied-billed Grebe   (Podilymbus 
podiceps) 

Yes species info Breeding

Prairie Warbler   (Dendroica discolor) Yes species info Breeding

Purple Sandpiper   (Calidris 
maritima) 

Yes species info Wintering

http://ecos.fws.gov/ecos/helpdesk.do
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0G8
http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/wizard/speciesInformation!showSpeciesInformation.action?spcode=B0F3
http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/wizard/speciesInformation!showSpeciesInformation.action?spcode=B008
http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/wizard/speciesInformation!showSpeciesInformation.action?spcode=B0HI
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0JY
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0LL
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0JM
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0JW
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0AN
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0FU
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0JQ
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0K4
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0L1


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 5 of 6

Version 1.4

Saltmarsh Sparrow   (Ammodramus 
caudacutus) 

Yes species info Breeding

Short-eared Owl   (Asio flammeus) Yes species info Wintering

Snowy Egret   (Egretta thula) Yes species info Breeding

Wood Thrush   (Hylocichla 
mustelina) 

Yes species info Breeding

NWI Wetlands (USFWS National Wetlands Inventory).

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service is the principal Federal agency that provides information on the extent and 
status of wetlands in the U.S., via the National Wetlands Inventory Program (NWI).  In addition to impacts to 
wetlands within your immediate project area, wetlands outside of your project area may need to be considered 
in any evaluation of project impacts, due to the hydrologic nature of wetlands (for example, project activities 
may affect local hydrology within, and outside of, your immediate project area).  It may be helpful to refer to 
the USFWS National Wetland Inventory website. The designated FWS office can also assist you. Impacts to 
wetlands and other aquatic habitats from your project may be subject to regulation under Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act, or other State/Federal Statutes.  Project Proponents should discuss the relationship of these 
requirements to their project with the Regulatory Program of the appropriate U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
District.

Data Limitations, Exclusions and Precautions
The Service's objective of mapping wetlands and deepwater habitats is to produce reconnaissance level 
information on the location, type and size of these resources. The maps are prepared from the analysis of high 
altitude imagery. Wetlands are identified based on vegetation, visible hydrology and geography. A margin of 
error is inherent in the use of imagery; thus, detailed on-the-ground inspection of any particular site may result 
in revision of the wetland boundaries or classification established through image analysis.

The accuracy of image interpretation depends on the quality of the imagery, the experience of the image 
analysts, the amount and quality of the collateral data and the amount of ground truth verification work 
conducted. Metadata should be consulted to determine the date of the source imagery used and any mapping 
problems.

Wetlands or other mapped features may have changed since the date of the imagery and/or field work. There 
may be occasional differences in polygon boundaries or classifications between the information depicted on the 
map and the actual conditions on site.

http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0MY
http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/wizard/speciesInformation!showSpeciesInformation.action?spcode=B0HD
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0LC
http://ecos.fws.gov/speciesProfile/profile/speciesProfile.action?spcode=B0IB
http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/
http://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/CivilWorks/RegulatoryProgramandPermits.aspx
http://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/CivilWorks/RegulatoryProgramandPermits.aspx


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 

Trust Resources List

10/16/2014 Information, Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC) Page 6 of 6

Version 1.4

Exclusions - Certain wetland habitats are excluded from the National mapping program because of the 
limitations of aerial imagery as the primary data source used to detect wetlands. These habitats include 
seagrasses or submerged aquatic vegetation that are found in the intertidal and subtidal zones of estuaries and 
nearshore coastal waters. Some deepwater reef communities (coral or tuberficid worm reefs) have also been 
excluded from the inventory. These habitats, because of their depth, go undetected by aerial imagery.

Precautions - Federal, state, and local regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over wetlands may define and 
describe wetlands in a different manner than that used in this inventory. There is no attempt, in either the design 
or products of this inventory, to define the limits of proprietary jurisdiction of any Federal, state, or local 
government or to establish the geographical scope of the regulatory programs of government agencies. Persons 
intending to engage in activities involving modifications within or adjacent to wetland areas should seek the 
advice of appropriate federal, state, or local agencies concerning specified agency regulatory programs and 
proprietary jurisdictions that may affect such activities.

IPaC is unable to display wetland information at this time.



     
 

Town of Exeter, NH   

Linden Street & Court Street 

Culvert Replacement Project 

 

 

 
NEW HAMPSHIRE WETLANDS BUREAU 

STANDARD DREDGE AND FILL  

PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

 

 

November 2014 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

Town of Exeter 

Public Works Department 

13 Newfields Road 

Exeter, NH  03833 

 

Prepared by: 

 

35 Bow Street 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

(603) 431‐6196 ∙ Fax (603) 431‐5376 





     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 

NEW HAMPSHIRE WETLANDS BUREAU  

STANDARD DREDGE AND FILL PERMIT APPLICATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. Application Fee (attached) 

B. Application Form (including Project Description) 

C. Required Signatures (see Application Form) 

D. Pre‐Application Notes  
E. Need and Minimization & Avoidance 

F. NHB Review 

G. NH PGP Requirements 

1. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Appendix B 

2. NHDHR 

H. Designated River Check (see Application Form) 

I. USGS Map 

J. Photographs 

K. Plans 

L. Tax Map 

M. Abutter Notification 
N. Permission for work within 20 feet 

O. Wetland Classification Report 

P. Stream Crossing Requirements 

 

 

1



Permit Application - Valid until 01/2015 – Revised 7/1/14                            Page 1 of 4 

 THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

LAND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 
WETLANDS BUREAU 

29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 
Phone: (603) 271-2147    Fax: (603) 271-6588     

http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands  

PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

1.  REVIEW TIME:  
Indicate your Review Time below. Refer to Guidance Document A for instructions. 

 Standard Review (Minimum, Minor or Major Impact)  Expedited Review (Minimum Impact) 

2.  PROJECT LOCATION:  
Separate applications must be filed with each municipality that jurisdictional impacts will occur in. 

ADDRESS: Linden Street & Court Street                                              TOWN/CITY:  Exeter 

TAX MAP:  Maps 82, 83 & 95 BLOCK:  N/A LOT:  ROW UNIT:        

USGS TOPO MAP WATERBODY NAME: Little River   NA STREAM WATERSHED SIZE: 15.7 mi2             NA 

LOCATION COORDINATES (If known):  Linden 42.9723,-70.9596 Court: 42.9726, -70.9510                                                                                
  Latitude/Longitude     UTM    State Plane 

3.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Provide a brief description of the project outlining the scope of work.  Attach additional sheets as needed to provide a detailed explanation 
of your project.  DO NOT reply “See Attached" in the space provided below. 

The Town of Exeter is seeking to replace two existing crossings of the Little River.  The Linden Street crossing 
consists of two 12’-10” by 8’- 4” steel plate arch culverts that were built in 1967.  The Court Street crossing consists 
of three 14’-0” by 9’- 8” that were built in 1965.  The existing culverts are deteriorating and need to be replaced.  The 
proposed replacement structure will be a single span bridge at each crossing.  Approximately 2,850 sq. ft. of wet 
land impacts are proposed at the Linden Street crossing for removal of the existing culverts and regrading around 
the proposed wing walls.  Approximately, 4,650 sq. ft. of wetland impacts are proposed at the Court Street crossing 
for removal of the existing culverts and regrading around the proposed wing walls. 

4.  RELATED PERMITS, ENFORCEMENT, EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATION, SHORELAND, ALTERATION OF TERRAIN, ETC… 

None 

5.  NATURAL HERITAGE BUREAU & DESIGNATED RIVERS: 
See the Instructions & Required Attachments document for instructions to complete a & b below. 

a.   Natural Heritage Bureau File ID:     NHB     -  14-2008 and 14-2033    .   

b.     Designated River the project is in ¼ miles of:                                                      ; and  
date a copy of the application was sent to Local River Advisory Committee: Month:       Day:       Year:          

  NA               

 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

 
Administrative 

Use 
Only 

File No.: 

Check No.: 

Amount: 

Initials: 

2







Permit Application - Valid until 01/2015 – Revised 7/1/14                            Page 4 of 4 

12. IMPACT AREA: 
For each jurisdictional area that will be/has been impacted, provide square feet and, if applicable, linear feet of impact        
Permanent: impacts that will remain after the project is complete. 
Temporary:  impacts not intended to remain (and will be restored to pre-construction conditions) after the project is complete. 
After-the-fact (ATF): work completed prior to receipt of this application by DES. Check box to indicate ATF. 

JURISDICTIONAL AREA 
PERMANENT 

Sq. Ft. / Lin. Ft. 
TEMPORARY   

Sq. Ft. / Lin. Ft. 

Forested wetland        ATF        ATF

Scrub-shrub wetland        ATF        ATF

Emergent wetland 1485  ATF        ATF

Wet meadow        ATF        ATF

Intermittent stream         ATF        ATF

Perennial Stream / River 6015 / 165  ATF       /        ATF

Lake / Pond       /        ATF       /        ATF

Bank - Intermittent stream       /        ATF       /        ATF

Bank - Perennial stream / River            /        ATF       /        ATF

Bank - Lake / Pond       /        ATF       /        ATF

Tidal water       /        ATF       /        ATF

Salt marsh        ATF        ATF

Sand dune        ATF        ATF

Prime wetland        ATF        ATF

Prime wetland buffer        ATF        ATF

Undeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone (TBZ)        ATF        ATF

Previously-developed upland in TBZ         ATF        ATF

Docking - Lake / Pond        ATF        ATF

Docking - River        ATF        ATF

Docking - Tidal Water        ATF        ATF

TOTAL 7500 / 165        /        

 

13.  APPLICATION FEE: See the Instructions & Required Attachments document for further instruction  

 Minimum Impact Fee: Flat fee of $ 200    
 Minor or Major Impact Fee: Calculate using the below table below

Permanent and Temporary (non-docking) 7500  sq. ft. X   $0.20 = $ 1500 
 

Temporary (seasonal) docking structure:        sq. ft. X    $1.00 = $        

Permanent docking structure:        sq. ft. X    $2.00 = $        

Projects proposing shoreline structures (including docks) add $200  = $        

Total = $ 1500  

The Application Fee is the above calculated Total or $200, whichever is greater = $        

 
5



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

D.  Pre‐Application Notes 

A pre‐application meeting was held with Frank Richardson, NHDES, and Britt Audet, CMA Engineers, Inc. 

on September 23, 2014.  The overall goals of the project were discussed, the anticipated two phase 

construction schedule and permitting both projects with one application.  The need for filing a separate 

Shoreland Protection permit application was discussed.  Mr. Richardson indicated that a copy of the 

Shoreland permit worksheet should be included in the wetlands application.  The worksheet in included 

in this section. 

 

   

6



Shoreland Impact Permit Application Form – Valid Until 12/31/2014 Page 3 of 6                

 
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES              
LAND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

WETLANDS BUREAU 
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 

Phone: (603) 271-2147    Fax: (603) 271-6588   
Website: http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands/cspa/index.htm 

Permit Application Status: http://www2.des.state.nh.us/OneStop/Wetland_Permits_Query.aspx 
 
 

 

SHORELAND APPLICATION WORKSHEET 
 

This form must be submitted to the Department of Environmental Services Wetlands Bureau accompanied with a Shoreland Permit 
Application.  Instructions for completing this form are available on the shoreland program web page. 
 
For the purposes of this worksheet, “Pre-Construction” impervious surface areas1 means all human made impervious surfaces2 
currently in existence on the property, whether to be removed or to remain after the project is completed. “Post-Construction” 
impervious area means all impervious surfaces that will exist on the property upon completion of the project, including both new and 
any remaining pre-existing impervious surfaces. All answers shall be given in square feet. 
 

CALCULATING THE IMPERVIOUS AREA WITHIN 250 FEET OF THE REFERENCE LINE 

 STRUCTURE 
DESCRIPTION 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION 
IMPERVIOUS AREA 

POST-CONSTRUCTION 
IMPERVIOUS AREA 

PRIMARY STRUCTURE 
 
Including all attached decks  
and porches 

N/A     FT2 N/A     FT2 N/A    FT2 

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 
 
All other impervious surfaces 
excluding lawn furniture, well 
heads, fences and septic systems 

N/A  N/A FT2 N/A FT2 

_______________  _______________ FT2 _______________ FT2 

_______________  _______________ FT2 _______________ FT2 

_______________  _______________ FT2 _______________ FT2 

_______________  _______________ FT2 _______________ FT2 

_______________  _______________ FT2 _______________ FT2 

                                                   TOTAL: (A) ____________ FT2  (B) ____________ FT2 

Area of the lot located within 250 ft of reference line: (C) 50,090 

Percentage of lot covered by pre-construction impervious area within 250 ft of the reference 
line:[divide (a) by (c) x 100] 

(D) 64.0 % 

Percentage of lot to be covered by post-construction impervious area within 250 ft of the reference 
line upon completion of the project:  
[divide (b) by (c) x 100] 

(E) 63.7 % 

 

 
1 “Impervious surface area” as defined in Env-Wq 1402.15 means, for purposes of the impervious surface limitation specified 
in RSA 483-B:9, V(g), the sum total of the footprint of each impervious surface that is located within the protected shoreland. 
2 “Impervious Surface” as defined in RSA 483-B:4, VII-b means any modified surface that cannot effectively absorb or infiltrate 
water. Examples of impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roofs, and unless designed to effectively absorb or 
infiltrate water, decks, patios, and paved, gravel, or crushed stone driveways, parking areas, and walkways. 

 

7



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

E.  Project Need and Minimization & Avoidance 

The Linden Street crossing over  the Little River  is a causeway  like structure built  in 1967 with a  total 

length of 50 feet measured along the road. The river meanders upstream of the crossing and turns right 

as it flows through two Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP) arch culverts, each with a 12.8‐foot span and 8.3‐

foot rise. The CMP culverts are separated by 3.5 feet of fill with stone and cast‐in‐place concrete  infill 

headwalls  between  the  arches.  The  structure  is  listed  in  poor  condition  and  is  currently  on  the 

Municipal  Red  List  of  structures  that  require  replacement.   Heavy  rusting  over  time  has  resulted  in 

section  loss  of  the  structural metal  pipe  arches  to  the  extent  that  holes  and  severe  pitting  can  be 

observed in the lower section of the side walls along the water line. 

The Court Street Culvert crosses  the Little River approximately a half mile downstream of  the Linden 

Street  Culvert.  The  structure was  built  in  1965  and  is  of  similar  construction  to  the  Linden  Street 

crossing with one 14.1 by 8.75‐foot and two 12.8 by 8.3‐foot CMP culverts and a total length of 85 feet 

measured along the road. The sidewalk at the Court Street Culvert runs along the downstream  (east) 

side of the roadway and is approximately 5 feet wide with granite curbing. Including the sidewalk, the 

roadway has an overall width of 39 feet. The Court Street Culvert is not presently on the Municipal Red 

List, however  its condition  is borderline and near Red List status. Despite  the higher condition rating, 

the  Court  Street  Culvert was  observed  by  CMA  Engineers  to  be  in  similar  condition  to  the  Red  List 

Linden Street culvert. The Court Street Culvert is also currently classified as hydraulically deficient. 

The Town  is proposing  to  replace  the Linden Street crossing  in 2015 and  the Court Street crossing  in 

2016 with  single  span  bridges.    The  projects  are  being  permitted  together  due  to  their  geographic 

location and similar construction methods.   

See Attachment A – Minor & Major 20 questions on the following page. 

   

8



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 1 of 6 

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

LAND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 
WETLANDS BUREAU 

29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 
Phone: (603) 271-2147    Fax: (603) 271-6588     

http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands/index.htm  
  Permit Application Status: http://des.nh.gov/onestop/index.htm 

 
PERMIT APPLICATION - ATTACHMENT A 

MINOR & MAJOR 20 QUESTIONS 
 

Env-Wt 302.04 Requirements for Application Evaluation - For any major or minor project, the applicant shall demonstrate by 
plan and example that the following factors have been considered in the project’s design in assessing the impact of the 
proposed project to areas and environments under the department’s jurisdiction. Respond with statements demonstrating: 

1.  The need for the proposed impact. 

Replacement of the culverts at Linden Street and Court Street is needed due to the deterioration of the culverts.  
Heavy rusting over time has resulted in section loss of the structural metal pipe arches to the extent that holes and 
severe pitting can be observed in the lower section of the side walls along the water line.  The culverts were 
installed almost 50 years ago and have reached the end of their service life.  Linden and Court Streets are critical 
access roads to downtown Exeter.   

2. That the alternative proposed by the applicant is the one with the least impact to wetlands or surface waters on site. 

Single span bridges are proposed at each crossing.   These structures will restore the width of the river channel at 
each crossing.  Removal of the existing culverts will require impacts to the existing road embankment, portions of 
which have been delineated as wetlands.  Removal of the culverts and construction of the bridge abutments will  
require impacts to the river channel during construction.  Construction of a single span bridge will allow the width 
of the river channel to be restored to match existing river channel widths.  Restoring the width of the channel will 
increase hydraulic capacity and improve connectivity between the upstream and downstream sections of the Little 
River.  Restoring the channel width will promote improved aquatic organism passage as well as wildlife passage 
on the river banks.   

3.   The type and classification of the wetlands involved. 

Linden Street: 

The channel portion of the wetland at the Linden Street crossing has been classified as a riverine, lower perennial 
system with an unconsolidated bottom (R2UB).  The edges of the channel are bordered by dense palustrine 
emergent and scrub shrub wetland areas that are seasonally saturated or flooded (PEM/SS1E). 

Court Street: 

The upstream portion of the Court Street crossing has been classified as a palustrine emergent and aquatic bed 
system (PEM1/AB3F) that is semi-permenently flooded.  The downstream portion of the crossing has been 
classified as riverine, lower perennial system that has an unsolidated bottom (R2UB).  (See report in Section O) 

9



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 2 of 6 

4.  The relationship of the proposed wetlands to be impacted relative to nearby wetlands and surface waters. 

The proposed wetlands to be impacted are all within or along the banks of the Little River.  The Little River 
discharges to the Exeter River approximately 2,000 ft downstream of the Court Street crossing.   

5.  The rarity of the wetland, surface water, sand dunes, or tidal buffer zone area. 

The wetlands identified at the Linden Street and Court Street crossings are typical for this area of New Hampshire. 

6.  The surface area of the wetlands that will be impacted. 

Linden Street:  435 sq. ft. to PEM/SS1E and 2,410 sq. ft. to R2UB 

Court Street: 1050 sq. ft. to PEM/AB3F and 3,605 sq. ft. to R2UB. 

 

7.   The impact on plants, fish and wildlife including, but not limited to:   
a. Rare, special concern species;  
b. State and federally listed threatened and endangered species;  
c. Species at the extremities of their ranges;  
d. Migratory fish and wildlife;  
e. Exemplary natural communities identified by the DRED-NHB; and 
f. Vernal pools. 

The existing Court Street crossing is within the vicinity of a documented American eel (Anguilla rostrata) 
population and documented Blanding's turtle (Emydoidea blandingii) locations.  The American eel is listed as a 
State Special Concern species and the Blanding's turtle is a State Endangered species.  The New Hampshire Fish 
& Game Department (NH F&G) was contacted to assess the potential for the proposed project to impact these 
species.    NH F&G Nongame Department responded that they do not expect impacts to either species as a result 
of the project construction and noted that the full span crossing will be an improvement for wildlife passage.  The 
NH F&G Marine Program requested further coordination regarding the construction schedule in order to limit 
impacts to diadramous fish.     

10



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 3 of 6 

8.  The impact of the proposed project on public commerce, navigation and recreation. 

The proposed project is expected to be a benefit to recreational users of the river.  A public boat ramp is located 
downstream of the Court Street crossing.  The full span crossing will allow greater access to the section of the 
Little River upstream of the Court Street crossing.  

9.   The extent to which a project interferes with the aesthetic interests of the general public. For example, where an 
applicant proposes the construction of a retaining wall on the bank of a lake, the applicant shall be required to indicate 
the type of material to be used and the effect of the construction of the wall on the view of other users of the lake. 

 The proposed project is not expected to interfere with the aesethic interests of the general public.  The majority of 
the public will interact with the crossings by travelling over the roadway and the proposed bridges will not be 
readily visible from above.  It is expected that aethetics of the proposed crossing will improve from vantage points 
upstream and downstream of the crossings since the further reaches of the river will now be visible beneath the 
full span of the bridge.      

10. The extent to which a project interferes with or obstructs public rights of passage or access.  For example, where the 
applicant proposes to construct a dock in a narrow channel, the applicant shall be required to document the extent to 
which the dock would block or interfere with the passage through this area. 

The proposed project will not obstruct public rights of passage or access.  The proposed crossings are 
replacement structures for existing culverts that are deterioriortating and need to be replaced. 

11.   The impact upon abutting owners pursuant to RSA 482-A:11, II. For example, if an applicant is proposing to rip-rap a   
stream, the applicant shall be required to document the effect of such work on upstream and downstream abutting 
properties. 

Construction of the proposed projects will require temporary construction rights of entry at all quandrants of the 
bridges to allow for installation of erosion control measures, removal of the exisitng structures, excavation for 
proposed structures and construction dewatering.  An easement will also be required in the northwest quadrant of 
the Court Street crossing where an addition to the existing masonry retaining wall is proposed.  The Town will 
secure all access rights and easements prior to construction of the crossing begins. 

   

11



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 4 of 6 

12.  The benefit of a project to the health, safety, and well being of the general public. 

The proposed project provides replacement structures for existing deteriorated structures.  The replacement 
structures will provide for the continued, safe use of the roadway. 

13. The impact of a proposed project on quantity or quality of surface and ground water. For example, where an applicant 
proposes to fill wetlands the applicant shall be required to document the impact of the proposed fill on the amount of 
drainage entering the site versus the amount of drainage exiting the site and the difference in the quality of water 
entering and exiting the site. 

The proposed project is not expected to have an impact on the quantity or quality of the surface water.  The full 
span crossings will improve the hydraulic capacity of both crossings.  However, hydraulic modeling conducted for 
the project indicates that the water elevation of the Little River is ultimately controlled by the hydraulics of the 
Exeter River during large storm events.  

14.   The potential of a proposed project to cause or increase flooding, erosion, or sedimentation. 

The proposed project will improve the hydraulic capacity of both crossings, decreasing the potential for upstream 
flooding.  Appropriate sedimentation and erosion control practices will be implemented during construction to 
prevent migration of sediments from the construction site during construciton.  The proposed project includes the 
installation of rip rap on the embankement beneath the proposed bridges to prevent erosion.   

15. The extent to which a project that is located in surface waters reflects or redirects current or wave energy which might 
cause damage or hazards. 

The proposed project is not expected to reflect or redirect current or wave energy which might cause damage or 
hazards. 

12



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 5 of 6 

16.  The cumulative impact that would result if all parties owning or abutting a portion of the affected wetland or wetland 
complex were also permitted alterations to the wetland proportional to the extent of their property rights. For example, 
an applicant who owns only a portion of a wetland shall document the applicant’s percentage of ownership of that 
wetland and the percentage of that ownership that would be impacted. 

The proposed project requires impacts to wetlands necessary to replace the existing deteriorated structures that 
have reached the end of their service life.  The proposed project will result in an improved crossing configuration 
at both locations that will benefit the wetlands abutting the proposed project. 

17.  The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or wetland complex. 

The proposed project is expected to improve fish habitat, wildlife habitat and production export functions of the 
wetland system by accomodating the natural channel width of the Little River and improving aquatic passage.  

18.  The impact upon the value of the sites included in the latest published edition of the National Register of Natural   
Landmarks, or sites eligible for such publication. 

A request for Project Review was submitted to the New Hampshire Division of Histrocial Resources (DHR) and 
they determined that impacts to archaeological or historical resources are not expected.  Refer to Section G for 
documentation received from NHDHR. 

13



Permit Application - Attachment A - 20 Questions - Valid until 01/2015                                                           Page 6 of 6 

19.  The impact upon the value of areas named in acts of congress or presidential proclamations as national rivers, national 
wilderness areas, national lakeshores, and such areas as may be established under federal, state, or municipal laws 
for similar and related purposes such as estuarine and marine sanctuaries. 

There will not be impacts to any of the above-mentioned sites. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.  The degree to which a project redirects water from one watershed to another. 

The proposed project does not direct water from one watershed to another. 

 
Additional comments 

The wetlands upstream of the Linden Street crossing and between the Linden and Court Street crossings have 
been designated as Prime Wetlands.  The proposed project is not expected to have a negative impact on these 
wetlands since it includes restoring the natural width of the channel and will improve aquatic and wildlife passage.  

 
 

14



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

F.  NHB Review 

Separate NHB reviews were completed for each crossing.  The NHB report for Linden Street did 
not report any rare species nor exemplary natural communities near the proposed bridge.  The 
NHB  report  for Court  Street  identified  two  rare  species  known  to exist  in  the  vicinity of  the 
project.      The  American  eel  (Anguilla  rostrata),  a  species  of  State  Special  Concern,  and  the 
Blanding’s turtle (Emydoidea blandingii), a State Endangered species, have both been observed 
downstream of the Linden Street and Court Street culverts, in the Exeter River corridor. 
 
The New Hampshire Fish & Game Department (NH F&G) was contacted to assess the potential 
for the proposed project to impact these species.    NH F&G Nongame Department responded 
that they do not expect  impacts to either species as a result of the project construction.   The 
NH F&G Marine Program requested further coordination regarding the construction schedule in 
order to  limit  impacts to diadramous  fish.   Diadramous  fish are expected to migrate between 
March and June and emigrate between August and December.   Construction of the proposed 
bridge  is  expected  to  commence  in  June,  after  school  is  out  for  the  summer,  and  end  in 
September.    Therefore,  bridge  construction  is  not  expected  to  impact  diadramous  fish 
migration.  
   

   

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

G.  NH PGP Requirements 

 
   

32



 

 
New Hampshire Programmatic General Permit (PGP) 

Appendix B - Corps Secondary Impacts Checklist 
(for inland wetland/waterway fill projects in New Hampshire) 

 
1. Attach any explanations to this checklist.  Lack of information could delay a Corps permit determination. 
2. All references to “work” include all work associated with the project construction and operation.  Work 
includes filling, clearing, flooding, draining, excavation, dozing, stumping, etc. 
3. See PGP, GC 5, regarding single and complete projects.  
4. Contact the Corps at (978) 318-8832 with any questions. 
1. Impaired Waters Yes No 
1.1 Will any work occur within 1 mile upstream in the watershed of an impaired water?  See 
http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wmb/section401/impaired_waters.htm 
to determine if there is an impaired water in the vicinity of your work area.*   

  

2. Wetlands Yes No 
2.1 Are there are streams, brooks, rivers, ponds, or lakes within 200 feet of any proposed work?   
2.2 Are there proposed impacts to SAS, shellfish beds, special wetlands and vernal pools (see 
PGP, GC 26 and Appendix A)?  Applicants may obtain information from the NH Department of 
Resources and Economic Development Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) website, 
www.nhnaturalheritage.org, specifically the book Natural Community Systems of New 
Hampshire. 

  

2.3 If wetland crossings are proposed, are they adequately designed to maintain hydrology, 
sediment transport & wildlife passage? 

  

2.4 Would the project remove part or all of a riparian buffer?  (Riparian buffers are lands adjacent 
to streams where vegetation is strongly influenced by the presence of water. They are often thin 
lines of vegetation containing native grasses, flowers, shrubs and/or trees that line the stream 
banks.  They are also called vegetated buffer zones.) 

  

2.5 The overall project site is more than 40 acres.   
2.6 What is the size of the existing impervious surface area?  
2.7 What is the size of the proposed impervious surface area?  

2.8 What is the % of the impervious area (new and existing) to the overall project site?  

3.  Wildlife Yes No 
3.1  Has the NHB determined that there are known occurrences of rare species, exemplary natural 
communities, Federal and State threatened and endangered species and habitat, in the vicinity of 
the proposed project?  (All projects require a NHB determination.) 

  

3.2 Would work occur in any area identified as either “Highest Ranked Habitat in N.H.” or 
“Highest Ranked Habitat in Ecological Region”? (These areas are colored magenta and green, 
respectively, on NH Fish and Game’s map, “2010 Highest Ranked Wildlife Habitat by Ecological 
Condition.”)  Map information can be found at:  
• PDF:  www.wildlife.state.nh.us/Wildlife/Wildlife_Plan/highest_ranking_habitat.htm.  
• Data Mapper:  www.granit.unh.edu. 
• GIS:  www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html. 

 

  

33

http://www.dred.state.nh.us/divisions/forestandlands/bureaus/naturalheritage�
http://www.nhdfl.org/library/pdf/Finalsystemsreport.pdf�
http://www.nhdfl.org/library/pdf/Finalsystemsreport.pdf�
http://www.granit.unh.edu/�
http://www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html�
BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Typewritten Text
32,050 sq ft

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text
31,920 sq ft

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text
64%

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text



3.3 Would the project impact more than 20 acres of an undeveloped land block (upland, 
wetland/waterway) on the entire project site and/or on an adjoining property(s)? 

  

3.4 Does the project propose more than a 10-lot residential subdivision, or a commercial or 
industrial development? 

  

3.5 Are stream crossings designed in accordance with the PGP, GC 21?   
4.  Flooding/Floodplain Values Yes No 
4.1 Is the proposed project within the 100-year floodplain of an adjacent river or stream?   
4.2 If 4.1 is yes, will compensatory flood storage be provided if the project results in a loss of 
flood storage? 

  

5.  Historic/Archaeological Resources   
For a minor or major impact project - a copy of the Request for Project Review (RPR) Form 
(www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review)  shall be sent to the NH Division of Historical Resources as required 
on Page 5 of the PGP** 

  

*Although this checklist utilizes state information, its submittal to the Corps is a Federal requirement. 
** If project is not within Federal jurisdiction, coordination with NH DHR is not required under Federal law.. 
` 

34

http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review�
BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Stamp

BAudet
Typewritten Text

BAudet
Typewritten Text
N/A



Court Street Culvert

Linden Street Culvert

Linden & Court Street Culvert Replacements
Exeter, New Hampshire

0 2,000
Feet

4

Civil/Environmental Engineers

35 Bow Street
Portsmouth, New Hampshire
03801-3819
Phone: (603) 431-6196

Wetlands Application
ACOE Checklist Mapping

November 2014

Legend
Project_area

2010 Surface Water Impairments with 1-mile Buffer

NH F&G Wildlife Action Plan 2010
Highest Ranked Habitat in NH

Highest Ranked Habitat in Ecological Region

FEMA FIRM Flood Zone
100-yr Flood Zone A

100-yr Flood Zone AE

100-yr Flood Zone AO

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 F

:\C
A

D
D

\P
R

O
JE

C
TS

\9
23

-E
xe

te
r B

rid
ge

s\
G

IS
\9

23
-E

xe
te

r-
Li

nd
en

 C
ou

rt-
A

C
O

E
W

et
la

nd
s 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

.m
xd

 1
1/

7/
20

14

35



36



37



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

H.  Designated River Check 

The  Little  River  discharges  to  the  Exeter  River, which  is  a  Designated  River.    However,  the 
proposed projects are located more than one quarter of a mile from the Exeter River.   
   

38



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

I.  USGS Map 

 
   

39



Court Street Culvert

Linden Street Culvert

Linden Street & Court Street
Culvert Replacement Project

Exeter, NH

0 2,000
Feet

³
D

oc
um

en
t P

at
h:

 F
:\C

A
D

D
\P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\9

23
-E

xe
te

r B
rid

ge
s\

G
IS

\9
23

-E
xe

te
r-

Li
nd

en
C

ou
rt-

U
S

G
S

Lo
cu

s.
m

xd
 8

/1
8/

20
14

.

40



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

J.  Photographs 

All photographs taken July 30, 2014. 

 

Photo 1: Linden Street – Approach from the South 

 

 

Photo 2: Linden Street – Approach from the North 

41



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

 

 

 

Photo 3: Linden Street Culvert (from upstream) 

 

Photo 4: Linden Street Culvert (looking downstream) 

42



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

 

Photo 5: Court Street Culvert approach (from south) 

 

 

Photo 6: Court Street Culvert Approach (from north) 

 

43



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

 

Photo 7: Court Street Culvert (upstream inlet) 

 

Photo 8: Court Street Culvert (from downstream) 

 

 

See additional photographs provided in wetlands delineation report in Section O. 

44



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

K.  Plans 

 

   

45



46



47



48

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
3

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
3

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
12

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
       

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
1        WETLANDS PERMIT PLANS                       11/7/14    JLG

LKalloch
Stamp



49

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Rectangle

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
4

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
12

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
4

LKalloch
Typewritten Text
1        WETLAND PERMIT PLANS                          11/7/14    JLG

LKalloch
Stamp



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

L.  Tax Maps 

   

58



59

BAudet
Callout
Linden Street Crossing



60

BAudet
Callout
Court Street Crossing



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

M. Abutter Notification 

Abutters of the proposed project have been sent notification letters.  The list of abutters is 

provided below.  See attached certified mail receipts and example letter. 

 

Tax Map 82/Lot 17 
Kenneth L. Linn 
Frances E. Linn 
Nancy C. Newton 
61 Linden Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 
Tax Map 82/Lot 18 
Exeter Cemetery Association  
P.O. Box 29 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 
Tax Map 83/Lot 17 
Brian A. Fraser 
Paula M. Fraser 
98 Court Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 

 

 

   

61



62



63



64



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

N. Permission for Work within 20 feet 

The following abutters were notified that  impacts to wetlands within 20 feet of their property 
are  proposed.    The  letter  requested  that  they  return  acknowledgement  of  the  proposed 
impacts.  Copies of this acknowledgement will be forward to NHDES once received.  In addition, 
temporary  construction  rights  of  entry  at  all  quadrants  of  the  bridges will  be  required  for 
temporary  impacts  to  abutting  properties.    The  Town  will  secure  all  access  rights  prior  to 
construction of the crossing begins. 

 
Tax Map 82/Lot 13 
Southern District YMCA Camp Lincoln, Inc. 
P.O. Box 729 
67 Ball Road 
Kingston, NH 03848 

 
Tax Map 82/Lot 14 
Robert Matthews 
Anne Matthews 
60 Linden Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 

 
Tax Map 82/Lot 15 
Tax Map 83/Lot 54 
Town of Exeter  
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 
Tax Map 83/Lot 18 
Marci Linscott 
Bonnie Linscott 
19 Bow Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 
Tax Map 83/Lot 55 
North Court Street Condominiums, LLC  
592 Lafayette Road 
Hampton, NH 03842 

 
Tax Map 95/Lot 67 
Contoocook River Lofts, LLC  
3 Penstock Way 
Newmarket, NH 03857 

 
 

 
 
 
   

65



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

O. Wetlands Classification Report 

   

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

P. Stream Crossing Requirements 

The  proposed  crossings meet  the General Design  Considerations  for  all  stream  crossings  as 
follows: 
 
Env‐Wt 904.01 General Design Considerations 

a. Not be a barrier to sediment transport. 
Replacing  the  existing  culverts  with  a  full  span  structure  will  not  add  barriers  to 
sediment  transport.  Following  removal of  the  existing  culverts  and  embankment,  the 
channel bottom will be regraded to match  into the existing upstream and downstream 
bottom elevations. 

b. Prevent the restriction of high flows and maintain existing low flows. 
The proposed structures will provide an increase in hydraulic capacity over the existing 
crossings and therefore not impose a flow restriction. 

c. Not obstruct or otherwise substantially disrupt the movement of aquatic life indigenous 
to the waterbody beyond the actual duration of construction. 
The proposed crossings will not obstruct the movement of aquatic  life.     The proposed 
crossing will provide  full width  crossings,  improving  conditions  for passage of aquatic 
life. 

d. Not cause an increase in the frequency of flooding or overtopping of banks. 
The  proposed  structure will  increase  hydraulic  capacity  at  the  crossings  and will  not 
increase the frequency of flooding. 

e. Preserve watercourse connectivity where it currently exists. 
The  proposed  crossing will  preserve  existing watercourse  connectivity.    A  change  to 
existing connectivity is not proposed. 

f. Restore watercourse connectivity where: 
a. Connectivity previously was disrupted as a result of human activity(ies); and 
b. Restoration of connectivity will benefit aquatic life upstream or downstream of 

the crossing; 
The proposed crossings will improve watercourse connectivity by providing full width 
crossing and removing the existing embankment, thereby removing existing barriers to 
upstream and downstream connectivity. 

g. Not cause erosion, aggradation, or scouring upstream or downstream of the crossing; 
The  proposed  project  includes  installation  of  rip  rap  along  the  proposed  bridge 
abutments that will serve as scour prevention and prevent erosion of the proposed river 
bank. 

h. Not cause water quality degradation; 
The proposed project  involves  replacing existing deteriorated culverts with a  full bank 
width  crossing.    A  full  bank  width  crossing  will  provide  an  improved  crossing 
configuration over  the existing  culverts.     The new  crossings will be  constructed with 
erosion  and  sediment  controls  that  will  prevent  water  quality  degradation  during 
construction. 

 
 

85



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

The  Linden  Street  crossings  is  planned  for  construction  during  2015  and  the  Court  Street 
crossing is planned for 2016.  The roadways will be closed to traffic during construction of the 
new crossing which will allow for a single construction phase.   A water diversion structure will 
be used during removal of the existing culverts and embankment and construction of the bridge 
abutments.  Pumps will be used to maintain flow from the upstream side of the crossing to the 
downstream side during construction. 
 
Both  of  the  proposed  crossings  are  considered  Tier  3  crossings  due  to  the  size  of  their 
watershed, location within the floodplain and vicinity to prime wetlands.   An alternative design 
is  requested  for  the  requirement  the  crossings  be  sized  1.2  times  the  bank  full width.    As 
proposed, the new crossings will provide a full width crossing that is a significant improvement 
from  the existing  culverts. However,  complying with  the  requirement  for 1.2  times bank  full 
width would  result  in  larger bridge spans  that would be prohibitively more expensive  for  the 
Town and require significant impacts to private property.  The proposed alternative meets the 
requirements of Env‐Wt 904.05 as follows: 
 
Env‐Wt 904.05 Design Criteria for Tier 2 and Tier 3 Stream Crossings 

a)  In accordance with the NH Stream Crossing Guidelines, University of New Hampshire, 
May 2009,...; 
We are seeking an alternative design from the requirement in this document that 
requires the crossing be sized to 1.2 times the bank full width.  The width of the Little 
River upstream of both crossings is a wide wetland complex, and as such, installing a 
crossing to greater than bank full width is not practicable.  A hydraulic analysis of the 
proposed structures has been completed which concluded that the proposed structure 
will sustain the 100‐year storm event without overtopping the road. 
 

b)  With the bed forms and streambed characteristics necessary to cause water depths and 
velocities within the crossing structure at a variety of flows to be comparable to those 
found in the natural channel upstream and downstream of the stream crossing; 
Construction of the proposed crossings will include removing the existing culverts and 
embankment.  The river bottom will be regraded to match into existing river bottom 
elevations upstream and downstream of the culverts.  A natural bottom channel is 
proposed, with stone fill placed on the embankments to protect the bridge abutments. 

 
c)   To provide a vegetated bank on both sides of the watercourse to allow for wildlife 

passage; 
The river bank under the bridge will have stone slope protection to protect the 
abutments from scour.  Each crossing has a 3 ft wide bench along the top of the stone 
protection on either side of opening that wildlife can use to move through the opening.  
All other bank impacts will be loamed and seeded. 
 
d)  To preserve the natural alignment and gradient of the stream channel, so as to 
accommodate natural flow regimes and the functioning of the natural floodplain; 

86



     
 

Linden Street & Court Street Culvert Replacement Project 
Wetland Permit Application 
923‐Exeter‐Lindencourt‐Wetlands App‐Report‐BEA 

 

The proposed crossings are in line with existing culvert crossings. The proposed river 
bed grading will match in to the existing elevations upstream and downstream of the 
crossing. 
 

e) To accommodate the 100‐year frequency flood, to ensure that: 
1) There is no increase in flood stages on abutting properties; and 
The hydraulic capacity of each of the proposed crossings is greater than that of 
the existing culverts.  Accordingly, the hydraulic analysis indicates that flood 
elevations will be lower following installation of the proposed crossings. 
2) Flow and sediment transport characteristics will not be affected in a manner 
which could adversely affect channel stability; 
The opening of the proposed crossings are wider than that of the existing 
culverts.  The increase in hydraulic capacity will not impact flow and sediment 
transport characteristic that could affect channel stability. 

 
f)  To simulate a natural stream channel; and 

The proposed crossings will have natural bottom channels.  
 

g)  So as not to alter sediment transport competence. 
The opening of the proposed crossings are wider than that of the existing culverts.  The 
proposed crossing will have natural stream bed elevations that allow for natural 
sediment transport. 
 

Other stream crossing information requirements are presented on the plans in Section K.   
 

87



Court Street Culvert

Linden Street Culvert

Linden Street & Court Street
Culvert Replacement Project

Contributing Watershed
Exeter, NH

0 2,000
Feet

³
D

oc
um

en
t P

at
h:

 F
:\C

A
D

D
\P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\9

23
-E

xe
te

r B
rid

ge
s\

G
IS

\9
23

-E
xe

te
r-

Li
nd

en
C

ou
rt-

U
S

G
S

Lo
cu

sW
at

er
sh

ed
.m

xd
 1

1/
7/

20
14

.

Contributing Watershed Area: 15.7 sq. mi.

88



Snowmobile Trail – Exeter Snowhounds – In Orange 

Section Of Trail Near The Elliott Property The Snow Hounds Would Like To Re-Route (Purple) 

 



Draft Minutes 
 

1 | P a g e  
ECC 10.14.14 

Exeter Conservation Commission 
October 14, 2014 

 
Call to Order 

Chairman Jay Gregoirecalled the meeting to order at 7:00 pm in the Nowak Room of the 
Town Office building.   
 
Member Introduction: 
Don Briselden, Carlos Guindon, Pete Richardson, Bill Campbell, Ginny Raub, Board of 
Selectman representative, Anne Surman and Natural Resource Planner, Kristen Murphy. 
 

 Action Item 
1. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Permit for the “in kind” replacement of the 

seawall associated with the Phillips Wharf Condominium Association at 137R Water 
Street, Exeter (Tax Map 72, Lot 20) within the Tidal Buffer Zone. 
 
Members were provided copies of the Expedited Wetland Permit Application  as 
prepared by Mr. Steven Riker, a NH Certified Wetland Scientist, of Sandpiper 
Environmental Services, LLC.  The application requests to permit 82 sq. ft. of 
permanent and 700 sq. ft. of temporary construction impacts within the previously 
developed 100’ Tidal Buffer Zone. Photographs of the present condition of the wall 
were also distributed to the members.   
 
Mr. Riker introduced Mr. Rick Hartman who would be doing the on-site construction.  
Referencing the construction plan, he explained the existing stone would be removed 
down to the footing which he felt was strong. The work would be done at low tide 
and all materials would be removed from site.  A silt barrier would be put in place to 
prevent any exfiltration of material behind the wall.   The placement of the new 
stones would be tilted back to counteract the forces of gravity.  He did ascertain the 
new wall would be the same height as present wall and there was no provision to 
modify for anticipated higher tides. 
 
The Chair reviewed the options for this application.  By voting to accept, the 
Commission waives the right to intervene; by voting against (the application) the 
applicant would need to complete the more extensive wetland permit.  Mr. Campbell 
moved to approve the Expedited Wetland Permit application; seconded by Mr. 
Briselden.  Motion carried with Mr. Richardson opposed. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes. 
Mr. Gregoire asked for the change of a road name stated under the Trails report.   
Mr. Richardson moved to accept minutes with correction; seconded by Mr. Guindon.  
Motion carried with Ms. Surman and Ms. Raub abstaining as they were not present 
for that meeting. 

3. Treasurer’s Report 



Draft Minutes 
 

2 | P a g e  
ECC 10.14.14 

Ms. Raub, Treasurer, distributed copies of the financial report.  The dollar amounts 
listed were explained and discussed.  Mr. Guindon moved to accept the Treasurer’s 
report; seconded by Mr. Campbell.  Motion carried. 
 

4. Expenditure requests 
A quote of $350.00 was received for the cleaning of the Raynes Barn by the Yeti 
Landcare Co.  The owner, Mr. Keith Whitehouse, is an Exeter resident and trail user 
and wanted to help the Commission with this task. With clarification on the Town’s 
bidding procedure, Mr. Gregoire felt a certificate of insurance was needed to be 
provided before accepting the bid. 
 
Mr. Campbell moved to approve up to $350.00 to Yeti Landcare Services for the 
cleaning of the Raynes Barn.  The Chair wished to add with proof of general liability 
insurance to the motion which Mr. Campbell accepted.  Motion seconded by Mr. 
Briselden.Motion carried  
 
Ms. Murphy stated the Raynes barn door is being constructed by the students at the 
Seacoast School of Technology (SST) but because of extenuating circumstances it was 
not able to be completed last year. The funds were approved in the 2013-14 budget 
andcarried over to the current budget.  Having received an invoice for purchase of 
the lumber it appears to be underway butthe students willnot be able to install.  Mr. 
Kevin Smart of DPW stated a contractor will be needed to install the door. 
 
Recognizing a member of the public was in the audience The Chair asked if there was 
any public comment at this time.  There being none, the Chair entertained a motion 
to close the public meeting and enter into a non-public work session.  Ms. Surman so 
moved; seconded by Mr. Richardson.  Motion carried. 
 

Public meeting adjourned at 7:40 pm. 
Work Session 

1. Timber harvest 
Mr. Briselden spoke of the forest management plan the Commission had prepared by 
forester Charlie Morenosome of years ago, but for a number of circumstances it has 
not gone forward. He asked if the Commission wants to commit to a winter of 2015 
harvest and what are the steps necessary to accomplish this; nothing to commit to at 
this meeting. Perhaps a meeting should take place with Commission members, Ms. 
Murphy and Mr. Moreno and relay the ECC is committed to the project for winter of 
2015. And what is it we need to do make it happen; does plan need to be refreshed. 
Mr. Guindon, Mr. Briselden and Mr. Richardson expressed a willingness to be 
included in such meeting. 
There is no need to budget monies in next year’s account but pretreating the invasive 
plant species in the area and widening the existing logging road for better access to 
the 30 designated acres might need to be considered/included. 
 



Draft Minutes 
 

3 | P a g e  
ECC 10.14.14 

It was acknowledged this will be a very visible project and public education will be 
necessary to advise the public when and why the logging project is being done. 
 

2. Open Space Committee (OSC) 
Mr. Briselden noted a vote was taken several months ago to re-activate the Open 
Space Committee but did not proceed to solicit members. He conceded it probably 
occupied a lower priority with the Commissionbut he would like to keep it visible.  He 
explained this is unlike the former OSC when it was a committee appointed by the 
BOS to implement the spending of the three million dollars approved for land 
acquisition.  This group is to focus more on stewardship and its members need not be 
members of the Commission; just have an interest in helping to maintain the Town’s 
natural resources.   
 
Along with posting notices on ECC page on Town website, and Facebook page, Ms. 
Surman suggested bringing signup sheets to public forums such as the Fall Chili Fest. 

 
3. Raynes Farm Management Plan (RFMP) 

Ms. Murphy summarized the management plan  for the property is in place, but with 
the Town voters approving the new roofing and future cleaning of the barn perhaps 
with this renewed interest in the barn it might be the time to revisit the goals for 
barn and schedule a meeting of the Raynes Barn Stewardship Committee. 
 
Mr. Briselden stated the original plan was drawn up in 2007 after some major work 
was done to barn structure and there remains other structural work. But of 
importance is what the vision for the uses of the barn is in the coming years so we 
are able to move in that direction.  Mr. Briselden suggested members receive a copy 
of the 2007 plan, noting what has been done since it last updated in 2011 and submit 
suggestions.  The MP is for the area as a whole but focuses on the barn. 
 
Mr. Guindon spoke of the old railroad bed on site whichis now incorporated into the 
trail system; would like to see it incorporated into the history of the site. He  
questioned if it is worth approaching railroad company to release the rights to the 
Town. 
 
Nate Merrill, the tenant farmer at Raynes, told Ms. Murphy of a program the 
Stratham Heritage Commission is hosting in February.  A noted historian on New 
England barns will be the speaker and suggested the Exeter Heritage Commission 
partner with the Stratham group on this event and include photos of the Raynes and 
other town barns to highlight for the event. Ms. Murphy advised the ExeterHeritage 
Commission and is unsure who should pursue: ConCom or Heritage group.   
 
Mr. Richardson spoke on seeking funding from outside sources; feels more than Ms. 
Murphy should be involved.  He had hoped he could do more; invited others to be of 
assistance to him and Ms. Murphy.  Going forward, Ms. Murphy added she would 



Draft Minutes 
 

4 | P a g e  
ECC 10.14.14 

perhaps like a work session to seek input and dollar amounts when preparing the 
next year’s budget. 
 

4. Trail Issues 
Un-permitted wetland crossings 
One issue facing the Commission is the un-permitted wetland crossings on the red 
trail off of the Watson entrance in the Oakland Town Forest.  Going back, these 
crossings were to be removed by the developer when the housing development was 
in the planning process but was not.  They have been there for some time and calls 
are now being received on their safety.  Mr. Gregoire was advised one has been 
stabilized by a trail user, but the question remains;should they be removed because 
of the wetlands.  Because they are heavily used, do we acknowledge the critical link 
and hire a consultant to go through the permitting process.  Ms. Murphy noted 
because they are crossing a prime wetland the process would be more involved going 
through a DES permitting process 
 
Research determined DES required the bridges come out and subsequently the 
Planning Board approval referenced compliance with the DES recommendations.  
Discussion on how do you undo a Planning Board decision and what would be the 
consequences of removal.  If removed, the bikers might need to find alternate routes 
but felt the bridges would re-appear.   Mr. Briselden added because of all the trail 
work the bikers have done in the past and their support in acquiring the Elliot 
property there is the need to find that balance. 
 
Mr. Guindon felt the process of permitting should be explored; what is procedure and 
cost and then make a decision.  He is very familiar with that area and would want to 
know if it can be done and not impact the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Briselden summarized from the discussion the steps needed for resolution; to be 
determined is who bears the expense; may eventually be the developer if ordered to 
remove.  
 
Trail patrols 
Mr. Gregoire spoke of Jason Fritz, an Exeter fire fighter and president of the New 
England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) patrol group, coming to the Commission 
to speak on an arrangement for their group to patrol the trails in the Town Forest 
noting obstacles and/or safety concerns on the trails. They will also be equipped to 
help any trail user in need of assistance.  They in turn will relay any safety issues back 
to the Trails Committee for action if needed. 
 
There is also the potential for them to GPS the trails and providefeedback to import 
into one global GPS system and that in turn to be given to Town emergency 
responders if needed.  Mr. Gregoire, from personal experience, suggested using the 
Strava app that tracks running and cycling experiences and data from a GPS device. 



Draft Minutes 
 

5 | P a g e  
ECC 10.14.14 

Trail blazing 
Mr. Gregoire reported he has a group of volunteers ready to do blaze work in the 
Oaklands.  The technique was discussed and Mr. Briselden suggested, if possible, 
using fluorescent/reflective paint to prevent night users from adding their own 
markings. 
 
Other trails in need of attention 
Mr. Richardson spoke of the work he recently did at the entrance to the Morrisette 
property going in from the SST parking lot.  It was overgrown and the invasive, 
bittersweet, is very prevalent. 
 
Ms. Murphy reported on the Eagle Scout project to build bridges/connectors into the 
Morrisette property from the Court St./skateboard entrance.  She met with the Scout 
following the completion of the project but failed to convey her disappointment at 
the results.  The question raised is how are we, the Commission, to handle such 
projects as this is not the first experience.  It is apparent there is guidance needed 
and that the scout leaders are often not always able to provide.  But this is not the 
responsibility of the Commission.  It was agreed there is the need to be more explicit 
in future projects in letting the scout and the leaders know the procedure. Although 
the ECC is very appreciative of the time and effort that goes into a project, but ifthe 
final project is not what was presented and approved anddoes not meet the needs of 
the Commission there can’t be a final letter of approval.For this project, a letter will 
be sent to the scout stating based on feedback from the ECC members, the 
Commission is not ready to approve the project. 
 
Mr. Briselden wished to share what he has observed recently and that is the change 
in width in what used to be a “trail” that now has grown in width to become a 
“street”; all in the span from the spring to this fall.  It appears it is from increased 
usage and perhaps other users are not in tune with trail protocol.  It was suggested 
the brush from the logging project be used to close off some of the braided trails and 
allowed to re-vegetate. 
 
Next meeting will be the third Tuesday of the month, November 18, 2010. 
 
With no further business meeting was closed at 9:00 pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ginny Raub 
Secretary 



Pedestrian Trail DRAFT 
• File a Notification with NHDES 
• Opening in vegetation:  4 feet wide/8 feet tall 
• Tread smoothed of roots and rocks at least 2 feet wide 
• Slope of tread generally less than 5 % along the thread with 1-2 % across it 
• Crossings of streams and wetlands see NHDES standards* 

*BMP for Erosion Control 
 






	923-Exeter-LindenCourt-20141110-Wetlands Application-BEA.pdf
	923-Exeter-LindenCourt-Appendix-B.pdf
	2012_2017_NH_PGP 31
	2012_2017_NH_PGP 32

	923 - Wetland Permit Drawings.pdf
	923 - Wetlands Permit Cover
	923 - Wetlands Permit Notes
	923 - Wetlands Plans Stamped
	923 - Court_Site Plan (LBK) P & P
	923 - Linden_Site Plan P & P
	923 - Court_Site Plan (LBK) Typical Sections
	923 - Court_Site Plan (LBK) Boring Logs 1
	923 - Court_Site Plan (LBK) Boring Logs 2
	923 - Linden_Site Plan Boring Logs 1
	923 - Linden_Site Plan Boring Logs 2
	923 - Wetlands Permit Details


	November meeting memo.pdf
	Date:  November 14, 2014




